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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Directors’ Statement

We, Pongsakorn Pongsak and Piriyaporn Supansa Kusonpattana, being two of the directors of IFBH

Limited, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Board,

(i)

(ii)

the accompanying consolidated statements of profit or loss, consolidated statements of other
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated
statements of cash flows of the Group for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December
2023 and year ended 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2024, and the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 with notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2024 and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of the consolidated financial performance,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for the financial
period/year ended on that date; and

at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able
to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors,

7 o

Pongsakorn Pongsak
Director

SUPANSA KUSONPATTANA PIRTYAPORN

Piriyaporn Supansa Kusonpattana
Director

18 June 2025
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Independent auditor’s report
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Independent auditor’s report to the members of IFBH Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IFBH Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Group), which comprises the consolidated statements of profit or loss, consolidated
statements of other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows of the Group for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31
December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Relevant Periods”), and the consolidated
statements of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2024, and the statement
of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement
of financial position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the IFRS Accounting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023 and 2024 and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024
and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group for the financial period/year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) as issued
by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

Our auditor’s report is intended solely to assist the Company in its new listing application on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our report is intended solely for the Company and should not be distributed to or used by parties
other than the Company.

Other information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
Statement set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Independent auditor’s report
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Independent auditor’s report to the members of IFBH Limited

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB"), and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use
or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to
permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Independent auditor’s report
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Independent auditor’s report to the members of IFBH Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (cont’d)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

P

Ernst & Young LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

18 June 2025
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Period from

8 December

2022 to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

Notes 2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
REVENUE 5 87,442 157,648
Cost of sales (57,103) (99,789)
Gross profit 30,339 57,859
Other items of income
Interest income 6 1 1,096
Other income 7 127 279
Other items of expense
Selling and distribution expenses (3,198) (5,389)
Marketing expenses (3,663) (7,355)
Administrative expenses (2,696) (4,947)
Finance costs 8 (43) (83)
Other expenses 9 (679) (1,382)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10 20,188 40,078
Income tax expense 13 (3,434) (6,762)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 16,754 33,316

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 16,754 33,316
Non-controlling interest iy _

16,754 33,316
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT: USs$ US$
Basic and Diluted 15 16.75 30.45

* Amount less than US$1,000
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Period from

8 December

2022 to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

Notes 2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 16,754 33,316
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Foreign currency translation Q) 6
Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit plan - (39)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR, NET OF TAX (1) (33)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR 16,753 33,283

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 16,753 33,283
Non-controlling interest _ _

16,753 33,283

* Amount less than US$1,000
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024

31 December

Notes 2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment 16 327 429
Intangible assets 17 10,116 8,992
Right-of-use assets 24 119 393
Other receivables 20 - 30
Total non-current assets 10,562 9,844
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 18 447 1,044
Trade receivables 19 2,989 7,045
Other receivables 20 546 447
Prepaid operating expenses 368 938
Cash and cash equivalents 21 15,599 54,818
Total current assets 19,949 64,292
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 22 7,619 15,672
Other payables 23 5,899 2,802
Contract liabilities 5 85 135
Lease liabilities 24 19 84
Income tax payable 3,263 6,703
Total current liabilities 16,885 25,396
NET CURRENT ASSETS 3,064 38,896
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,626 48,740
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Defined benefit obligations

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital

Retained earnings

Other reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

23
24
25
26

27

28

31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
3,747 -
105 235

171 246

97 170

4,120 651
9,506 48,089
737 18,133
8,754 30,570
) (630)

9,490 48,073

16 16

9,506 48,089
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Attributable to owners of the parent

Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(Note 27) (Note 28)
As at 8 December 2022 737 - - 737 - 737
Profit for the period - 16,754 - 16,754 —* 16,754
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation - - (1) Q) —* (1)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax - - (1) Q) —* (1)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 16,754 (1) 16,753 —* 16,753
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 14) - (8,000) - (8,000) - (8,000)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners - (8,000) - (8,000) - (8,000)
Transactions with non-controlling interests
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - - - - 16 16
Total transactions with non-controlling interests - - - - 16 16
As at 31 December 2023 737 8,754 (1) 9,490 16 9,506

* Amount less than US$1,000
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (cont’d)
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Attributable to owners of the parent

Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserve Sub-total interests equity
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(Note 27) (Note 28)
As at 1 January 2024 737 8,754 Q) 9,490 16 9,506
Profit for the year - 33,316 - 33,316 - 33,316
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation - - 6 6 = 6
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan - - (39) (39) = (39)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - (33) (33) = (33)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 33,316 (33) 33,283 = 33,283
Transactions owners, recognised directly in equity
Dividends on ordinary shares (Note 14) - (11,500) - (11,500) = (11,500)
Effect of Restructuring Exercise (Note 28) 596 - (596) - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares (Note 27) 16,800 - - 16,800 - 16,800
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners 17,396 (11,500) (596) 5,300 = 5,300
As at 31 December 2024 18,133 30,570 (630) 48,073 16 48,089

* Amount less than US$1,000
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Unrealised foreign currency exchange loss, net
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Interest income
Provision for defined benefit obligation

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in prepaid operating expenses
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in accrued operating expenses
Increase in contact liabilities

Total changes in working capital

Cash flows generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Interest received

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment
Payment for purchase of intangible asset

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Transaction costs on issuance of ordinary shares
Dividends paid on ordinary shares

Prepayment of leases

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period/year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of cash flows

Notes

16
17
24

24

26

16

27
27
14

24

21

Period from
8 December
2022 to
31 December Year ended 31
2023 December 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
20,188 40,078
18 86
1,124 1,124
14 80
195 89
7 15
- 62
(1) (1,096)
95 24
21,640 40,462
(442) (590)
(3,534) (3,200)
(353) (551)
8,794 6,979
755 798
85 50
5,305 3,486
26,945 43,948
- (3,241)
1 1,046
26,946 41,753
(337) (187)
(3,747) (7,493)
(4,084) (7,680)
737 17,500
- (700)
(8,000) (11,500)
- (106)
(7) (15)
(20) (56)
16 -
(7,264) 5,123
15,598 39,196
1 23
- 15,599
15,599 54,818
15,599 54,818
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow (cont’d)
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the consolidated statements of cash flows

A. Purchase of intangible assets Period from
8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

Notes 2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

(Note 2.2)
Additions to intangible assets 17 11,240 -
Payment during the period/year (3,747) (7,493)
Payable at end of period/year 23 7,493 -
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Statements of Financial Position of the Company
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024

31 December

Notes 2024
US$'000
(Note 2.1)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries 1.1 1,372
Total non-current assets 1,372
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 19 63
Other receivables 20 47
Prepaid operating expenses 4
Cash and cash equivalents 21 17,207
Total current assets 17,321
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables 23 338
Income tax payable 81
Total current liabilities 419
NET CURRENT ASSETS 16,902
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 18,274
NET ASSETS 18,274
EQUITY
Share capital 27 18,133
Retained earnings 141
TOTAL EQUITY 18,274
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

1.1

Corporate information

The Company

IFBH Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as a private limited company limited by
shares in Singapore on 27 February 2024 and domiciled in Singapore. The Company’s
holding company is General Beverage Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in Thailand. The
ultimate Controlling Shareholder is Mr Pongsakorn Pongsak (the “ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

The registered office of the Company is located at 6 Battery Road, #03-01 Six Battery Road,
Singapore 049909. The principal activity of the Company are those of investment holding.

The principal activity of the Company are those of investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are disclosed below.

Information about subsidiaries

As at the date of this report, the Company had direct interests in its subsidiaries, all of which
are private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have
substantially similar characteristics to a private company incorporated in Hong Kong), the
particulars of which are set out below.

Nominal value of The Group’s
Place and date of issued ordinary/ beneficial
incorporation and registered share interest in the
Name Notes place of operations capital Company Principal activities
Innovative Food 1) Singapore S$1,000,000 100% Wholesale of food
and Beverage 8 December 2022 and beverage
Pte. Ltd. (IFB (including dried or
Singapore) canned)
Innovative Food 2) Thailand THB$ 1,000,100 99.89 #* Business
and Beverage 26 January 2023 coordination
(Thailand) Co., services
Ltd (IFB (administrative,
Thailand) logistics and

support service
activities and
wholesale of food)

(1) The statutory financial statements for the period from its date of incorporation to 31 December 2023 and the
year ended 31 December 2024 prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) (“SFRS(1)") issued by the Accounting Standards Council, have been audited by Ernst & Young
LLP, a Public Accountants and Chartered Accountant firm registered in Singapore. Because IFB Singapore
(our operating subsidiary) was incorporated on 8 December 2022, the financial period for 2023 covers 8
December 2022 to 31 December 2023.

(2) The statutory financial statements for the period from its date of incorporation to 31 December 2023 and the
year ended 31 December 2024 prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated
under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with
the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting
Act B.E. 2543., and have been audited by EY Office Limited, a certified public accounting firm registered in
Thailand.

The Company controls IFB Thailand as it has (i) power over IFB Thailand, (ii) exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with IFB Thailand; and (iii) has ability to use its power to affect the amount of
the Company’s return.

As at 31 December 2023, IFB Singapore holds 4,900 ordinary shares and 1 preference share of IFB
Thailand, representing 49% of the total issued shares of IFB Thailand. By virtue of such preference share,
IFB Singapore is entitled to 15,000 votes and to receive the distribution of 94.90% of total dividends of IFB
Thailand. On 30 January 2024, there was an amendment to the IFB Thailand Shareholder's Agreement, to
increase the voting rights of the preference share from 15,000 to 5,000,000 votes, with the dividends clause
reflecting the increase in votes into the proportion of dividends the preference share holder is entitled to.
Accordingly, under Thai law, IFB Singapore is deemed to hold 99.89% beneficial interest in IFB Thailand
based on the articles of association of IFB Thailand. As a result, IFB Singapore is entitled to receive the
distribution of 99.89% of total dividends of IFB Thailand.

Following the Restructuring Exercise in Notel.2, the shares held by IFB Singapore were transferred to the
Company.

- 14 -
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

1. Corporate information (cont’d)
1.1 The Company (cont’d)
Information about subsidiaries (cont’d)

As at the end of 31 December 2024, the Company has direct interest in IFB Singapore and
IFB Thailand, the balances of the Company’s investments in subsidiaries are as follows:

31 December

2024
US$'000
Unquoted equity shares, at cost 1,372
Preference share, at cost _
1,372

*k Amount less than US$1,000
1.2 Restructuring exercise

A restructuring exercise was carried out to streamline and rationalise the Group structure
(the “Restructuring Exercise”). Pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise, the Group is formed
and made up of entities under common control of Mr Pongsakorn Pongsak, including General
Beverage Co., Ltd (“Holding Company”), the Company, Innovative Food and Beverage Pte.
Ltd. (“IFB Singapore”) and Innovative Food and Beverage (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“IFB
Thailand”). The following steps were taken pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise:

(a) Declaration of dividends
On 23 February 2024, IFB Singapore, a subsidiary of the Company, declared a final
exempt (one-tier) dividend of US$8.50 per share amounting to a total of US$8,500,000
for the financial period ended 31 December 2023 and declared an interim exempt (one-
tier) dividend of US$3 per share amounting to a total of US$3,000,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024.

(b) Incorporation of the Company
The Company was incorporated on 27 February 2024 with an initial share capital of S$1
(approximately US$1) comprising one share, held by Mr Pongsakorn Pongsak.

(c) Acquisition of IFB Thailand by the Company
On 8 March 2024, the Company acquired IFB Singapore’s entire ordinary and preference
shareholdings in IFB Thailand for an aggregate consideration of THB 1,372,280
(approximately US$39,000).

(d) Acquisition of IFB Singapore by the Company
IFB Singapore was incorporated on 8 December 2022 and held by General Beverage
Co., Ltd.. Pursuant to a Share Swap agreement dated 26 March 2024 entered into
between the Company and General Beverage Co., Ltd., the Company acquired the entire
issued and paid-up share capital of IFB Singapore for a consideration of approximately
US$1.3 million, which was satisfied by the allotment and issue of 999,999 new shares of
the Company.

Before the restructuring, IFB Thailand was a subsidiary of IFB Singapore and IFB Singapore
was a subsidiary of General Beverage Co., Ltd. As a result of the above restructuring, both
IFB Singapore and IFB Thailand became subsidiaries of the Company.

- 15 -
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IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

1.2

2.1

2.2

Corporate Information (cont’d)
Restructuring exercise (cont’d)

The consolidated financial statements presented for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31
December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024 are a continuation of IFB Singapore and
its subsidiary, since IFB Singapore’s incorporation on 8 December 2022 comprising the
consolidated financial position, performance and cash flows. Pursuant to this restructuring,
assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of IFB Singapore and its
subsidiary are consolidated based on their carrying amounts.

Although the Restructuring Exercise was completed on 26 March 2024 and the Company
was incorporated on 27 February 2024, the consolidated financial statements of the IFBH
Group are prepared as if the Company i.e. the parent of the Group had been in existence
since the incorporation of IFB Singapore as the Group is under the common control of the
Controlling Shareholder.

Material accounting policy information
Basis of presentation

Pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 26 March 2024 after the completion of
Restructuring Exercise.

The companies now comprising the Group were under the common control of the Controlling
Shareholder before and after the Restructuring Exercise. Accordingly, for the purpose of this
report, the consolidated financial statements has been prepared on a consolidated basis by
applying the principles of merger accounting as if the Company, i.e. the parent of the Group
had been in existence since the Group were under the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

Accordingly, the consolidated statements of profit or loss, the consolidated statements of
other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows
of the Group for the Relevant Periods are prepared as if the current group structure had been
in existence throughout the Relevant Periods.

Also, the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
have been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group, as if the current group structure had been in existence at those dates. No
adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities as a
result of the Restructuring Exercise.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation in full.
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Accounting Standards”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).

All IFRS Accounting Standards effective for the accounting period commencing from 1
January 2024, together with the relevant transitional provisions, have been early adopted by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements throughout the Relevant
Periods.
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2.2

2.3

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Basis of preparation (cont’d)

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2023
consists of the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023.

Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standard that have been issued are not yet
effective and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

Effective for annual
periods beginning on

Description or after

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Amendments to the 1 January 2026
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Contracts Referencing 1 January 2026
Nature-dependent Electricity

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 1 January 2026
11

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Date to be determined
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The directors expect that the adoption of these new and amended standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the year of initial application, apart
from IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements issued on 4 October 2024,
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

IFRS 18 is a new standard that replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. IFRS
18 introduces new categories of subtotals in the statement of profit or loss. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one of
five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
wherein the first three are new. It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-
defined performance measures, subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new
requirements for the location, aggregation and disaggregation of financial information. In
addition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under
the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to ‘operating profit or loss’ and removing the
optionality around classification of cash flows from dividends and interest. In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.
The amendments will have impact on the presentation and disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements but not on the measurement or recognition of items in the Group’s
financial information. The Group is in the process of analysing the new disclosure
requirements and to assess if changes are required to their internal information systems.
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2. Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.4 Basis of consolidation
(a) Basis of consolidation

(b)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent
accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
it:

- De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

- De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

- De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

- Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for
by applying the pooling of interest method which involves the following:

- The assets and liabilities of the combined entities are reflected at their carrying
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements of the controlling
holding company.

- No adjustments are made to reflect the fair values on the date of combination
or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

- No additional goodwill is recognised as a result of the combination.

- Any difference between the consideration paid/transferred and the equity
‘acquired’ is reflected within equity as merger reserve.

- The statement of comprehensive income reflects the results of the combining
entities for the full year, irrespective of when the combination took place.

Comparatives are presented as if the entities or businesses had always been
consolidated since the date the entities or businesses had come under common
control.
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2.5

2.6

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)

Foreign Currency

The financial statements are presented in United States dollars, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.

(@)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.
Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net
investment in foreign operations are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The
foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the
Group on disposal of the foreign operation.

(b) Consolidated financial statements
For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into United States Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
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2.7

2.8

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Plant and equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of plant and
equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a
consequence of acquiring or using the plant and equipment

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Computers 3-5years
Office equipment 3-5years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Mould 5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the asset
is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised.

Intangible asset

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. Following initial
acquisition, intangible assets other than goodwill are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains
control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation is charged over the following estimated useful life of the asset, using the
straight-line method:

Trademarks 10 years
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2.9

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

(@)

As lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.,
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of leases liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Office lease 4 —5 years
Motor vehicle 4 — 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. The accounting policy for
impairment is disclosed in Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties of terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Leases (cont'd)
(&) Aslessee (cont'd)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third party, if the trade
receivables do not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition.

- 22 -
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2.

211

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)

Financial instrument (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets (cont'd)
Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the assets are de-recognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the

classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are de-recognised, and through the amortisation process.

De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expires. On de-recognition, the difference between the
carrying amounts and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

2.12

2.13

2.14

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee contracts.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that results from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLSs.
Therefore, the group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days
past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contract amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in first-out method and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, expired and slow-moving items to
adjust the carrying value of inventories to the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.15

2.16

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee benefits
€) Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of
the countries in which it has operations. In particular, the Singapore companies in
the Group make contributions to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF") scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme.

Contributions to national pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related services are performed.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The subsidiary incorporated and operating in Thailand is required to provide certain
staff pension benefits to their employees under existing Thailand regulations.
Pension contributions are provided at rates stipulated by Thailand regulations and
are contributed to a pension fund managed by government agencies, which are
responsible for administering these amounts for the subsidiaries’ employees.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Current service cost

e Interest on the net defined benefit obligations

e Remeasurements of net defined benefit obligations

Interest on the defined benefit obligation is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit obligation that arises from the passage of time which is determined
by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the defined benefit
obligations. Interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognised as
expense or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses (excluding interest on
defined benefit obligations) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are recognised in other
reserves within equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group has obligations in respect of the long-term employee benefit payments it
must make to employees upon retirement under labour law and other employee
benefit plans. The Group treats these long-term employee benefit obligations as
defined benefit plan.

- 25 -



Docusign Envelope ID: 20BE66D7-8D7B-4983-8A44-A05586F0DD49

IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

2.16

2.17

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Employee benefits (cont’d)
(b) Defined benefit plans (cont’d)

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professional
qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the project unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are
recognised immediately in shareholder’s equity.

(c) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they are
accrued to the employees. The estimated liability for annual leave is recognised for
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is
when the customer obtains control of the good or service.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. The goods are generally sold with no right of return and with
retrospective volume rebates based on the aggregate sales over a period of time. The
amount of revenue recognised is based on the transaction price, which comprises the
contractual price, net of the estimated volume rebates. The amount of revenue recognised
is the amount of the transaction price allocated to the satisfied PO. The transaction price is
allocated to each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling prices of
the promised goods or services.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services. When
consideration is variable, the estimated amount is included in the transaction price to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenue will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. Revenue
may be recognised at a point in time or over time following the timing of satisfaction of the
PO. If a PO is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised based on the percentage of
completion reflecting the progress towards complete satisfaction of that PO.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised when the distributors sell products under the trademarks
owned by the Group.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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2.

2.18

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)

Taxes

(@)

(b)

(c)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the
countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax
relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Value-added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value-added
tax except:

. Where the value-added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the value-added tax is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value-added tax
included.

The net amount of value-added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial
position.
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2.19

3.1

3.2

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each
Relevant Periods. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

(a) Impairment assessment on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment on the
intangible assets on each Relevant Period. In making this assessment, the Group
evaluates among other factors, external and internal sources of information, financial
performance of the Group.

Where such indicators exist, management will prepare discounted future cash flow
to determine the recoverable value based on assumptions such as forecasted
revenue, profit margin and discount rate. As of the end of each Relevant Period,
management determined there is no indicator of impairment.

The carrying value of intangible assets for the Group at the end of the Relevant
Periods is disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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3.

3.2

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer aging
brackets based on different geographical markets.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, historical default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 19.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 and
2024 was approximately US$2,989,000 and US$7,045,000 respectively.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer
obtains control of the good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at
a point in time or over time.

The Group participates in promotional programmes with customers designed to
increase the sale of products. Among the programmes are arrangements where
customers are entitled to rebates for attaining specified sales levels. These
promotional programmes do not give rise to a separate performance obligation.
Where the consideration the Group is entitled to vary because of such programmes,
the amount payable is deemed to be variable consideration. Management makes an
estimate on an annual basis for each specified customer, the value of the variable
consideration based upon historical customer experience, expected customer
performance and/or estimated sales volumes. The related accruals are recognised
as a deduction from revenue and are not considered distinct from the sale of
products to the customer. The amount of the Group’s related accruals as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2024 was approximately US$1,052,000 and
US$945,000 respectively, as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.
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4. Operating segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the executive directors of the Company. During the Relevant Periods,
the Group is principally engaged in the sales of beverages and snacks. Management reviews
the operating results of the Group’s business as one operating segment for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, the
chief operating decision maker of the Company regards that there is only one segment which
is used to make strategic decisions.

Geographical information

Revenue information based on the geographical location of customers are disclosed in Note
5(a).

€) Non-current assets

31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
Primary geographical location

Singapore 10,327 9,030
Thailand 235 784
10,562 9,814

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of the assets and
excludes financial assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from external customers contributing over 10% to the total revenue of the Group
for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December
2024 is as follows:

Period from

8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Customer A 43,313 74,089
Customer B 22,732 44,798
Customer C 13,872 26,769
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5. Revenue

Revenue relates to sale of consumer beverages and snacks.

(@)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue

Period from

8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Primary geographical markets
Mainland China 79,917 145,657
Hong Kong 4,934 7,202
Taiwan 865 1,705
Singapore 895 1,250
United States of America 125 547
Canada 1 399
Australia - 239
Kuwait 68 141
Malaysia 107 134
Cambodia 193 44
Thailand 172 -
Other locations 165 330
87,442 157,648
Timing of transfer of goods
At a point in time 87,442 157,648

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.
Contract liabilities

The following table provides information about contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

31 December
2022 2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Contract liabilities: — 85 135

The contract liabilities are expected to be fulfilled within 12 months (2023: within 12
months) from the year end.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to customers for which the Group has received advances from. These are
recognised as revenue as the Group performs pursuant the contract.
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5. Revenue (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Contract liabilities (cont’d)
Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

Period from
8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year - 85

Performance obligations

The performance obligation of the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the assets is transferred to the customer, generally upon delivery of
the goods on board vessels at the designated port and payment in advance is
normally required, except for customers with credit terms where payment is generally
due within 45 days.

6. Interest income

Period from
8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Interest income:
- Bank balances and short-term deposits 1 1,096
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7. Other income

Period from

8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Royalty income (Note 30(a)) 107 250
Others 20 29
127 279
8. Finance costs
Period from
8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Bank charges 36 68
Interest expense on lease liabilities 7 15
43 83
9. Other expenses
Period from
8 December

2022 to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Foreign exchange loss, net 679 1,382
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10. Profit before tax

Other than items as disclosed in Notes 5 to 9, the following items have been included in
arriving at profit before tax:

Period from

8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)

Depreciation of plant and equipment (Note 16) 18 86
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 24) 14 80
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 1,124 1,124
Advertising expenses 2,306 5,564
Transportation and delivery expenses 2,703 4,599
Professional fees:

Listing expenses in connection to the previous SGX-ST

listing attempt 237 915

Listing expenses in connection with the Global Offering - 263

Others 230 243
Lease expenses — short-term and low-value assets leases 16 10
Impairment loss on trade receivables (Note 19) - 62
Auditor’s remuneration 100 182
Employee’s benefit expense (including directors’ and chief

executive’'s remuneration as set out in note 11):
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind 918 1,829
Defined contribution plan* 20 54
Defined benefit plan 95 24

*There are no forfeited contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.
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11.

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration

® On 27 February 2024, Mr. Pongsakorn Pongsak and Ms. Piriyaporn Supansa
Kusonpattana were appointed as a director and an independent non-executive
director of the Company, respectively.

(i) On 1 April 2024, Mr. Pongsakorn Pongsak was appointed as chief executive officer
and became an executive director of the Company.
(iii) On 1 April 2024, Mr. Tawat Kitkungvan was appointed as a non-executive director

of the Company.

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the Relevant Periods are as follows:

Period from
8 December Year ended
2022 to 31 31
December December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Fees:
Directors - 12
Other emoluments:
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind 100 272
100 284

a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the Relevant Periods are

as follows:
Period from
8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Ms. Piriyaporn Supansa Kusonpattana - 12
- 12

During the Relevant Periods, Ms. Piriyaporn Supansa Kusonpattana was appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration (cont’d)
b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief executive
A director received remuneration from subsidiaries now comprising the Group for his
appointment as director of subsidiaries. The remuneration of this director was recorded

in the financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:

Period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023

Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances Defined
and benefits in contribution Defined
kind plan benefit plan Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Chief Executive and
Executive Director:

Mr. Pongsakorn
Pongsak 100 - - 100
Total 100 — — 100

Year ended 31 December 2024

Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances Defined
and benefits in contribution Defined
kind plan benefit plan Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Chief Executive and
Executive Director:
Mr. Pongsakorn 226 46 - 272
Pongsak
Non-executive
Director:
Mr. Tawat Kitkungvan - - - -
Ms. Piriyaporn
Supansa
Kusonpattana — — — —
Total 226 46 - 272

No remunerations were paid or payable by the Group to the directors and a chief
executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or a compensation for loss
of office during the Relevant Periods.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the Relevant Periods.
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12. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December
2023 and year ended 31 December 2024 included 1 and 1 of the chief executive, details of
whose remuneration are set out in Note 11 above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Group for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31
December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Period from
8 December Year ended
2022 to 31 31
December December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind 287 569
Defined contribution plans 12 22
Defined benefit plans 69 9
368 600

The number of non-director and non-chief executive five highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Period from
8 December Year ended
2022 to 31 31
December December
2023 2024
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 — 1
4 4

13. Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the
tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Singapore

Singapore corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 17% on the taxable profits
of the Company and the Group’s Singapore subsidiary during the Relevant Periods.

Thailand

The subsidiary incorporated in Thailand is subject to tax at the statutory rate of 20% on its
taxable profits.



Docusign Envelope ID: 20BE66D7-8D7B-4983-8A44-A05586F0DD49

IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

13. Income tax expense (cont’d)
(a) Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the Relevant Periods are:
Period from
8 December

2022 to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Current income tax
- Current income taxation 3,262 6,723
- Over-provision in prior period/year - 47
3,262 6,676
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences 172 86
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 3,434 6,762

(b) Relationship between tax expense and profit before tax

The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of profit before tax
multiplied by the applicable corporate tax rate for each of the Relevant Periods are

as follows:
Period from
8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Profit before tax 20,188 40,078
Income tax expense at statutory tax
rate of 17% 3,432 6,813
Effect of tax in different jurisdiction 1 3
Tax exemptions and reliefs (13) (113)
Non-deductible expenses 27 227
Over-provision in prior period/year - 47
Others (13) (1212)
Income tax expense recognised in
profit or loss 3,434 6,762




Docusign Envelope ID: 20BE66D7-8D7B-4983-8A44-A05586F0DD49

IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

14.

15.

Dividends

Period from

8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)

Declared and paid

Dividends on ordinary shares:

Final exempt one-tier dividend for 2023: US$8.50 per share - 8,500*

Interim exempt one-tier dividend for 2024:; US$3 (2023: US$8)

per share 8,000 3,000*

*The date of declaration of dividends to shareholders was declared on 23 February 2024 and
paid to the shareholders before the Restructuring Exercise. Refer to Note 2.1.

A final exempt one-tier dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2024 of US$24.89
per share amounting to US$28,000,000 was proposed by the Board subsequent to the
financial year end. The dividend proposed is not accounted for until it has been approved by
the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the Relevant Periods after taking into account the issuance of ordinary shares as
disclosed in Note 27.

Earnings per share

Period from

8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024

Earnings (Note 2.2)
Earnings attributable to owner of the parent (US$'000) 16,754 33,316
Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the period/year used in the basic earnings per share

calculation ("000) 1,000 1,094
Basic earnings per share (USD) 16.75 30.45

Diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares existing during the Relevant Periods.
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16.

Plant and equipment

Cost:

At 8 December 2022
Additions

Translation differences

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
Additions
Translation differences

At 31 December 2024

Accumulated depreciation:

At 8 December 2022

Depreciation charge for the period
Translation differences

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
Depreciation charge for the year
Translation differences

At 31 December 2024

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2024

* Amount less than US$1,000

Office Furniture and
Computers equipment fittings Mould Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
19 17 82 219 337

1 1 6 —* 8

20 18 88 219 345

15 30 - 142 187

1 1 1 —* 3

36 49 89 361 535

1 2 8 7 18

_* _* _* _* _*

1 2 8 7 18

7 5 17 57 86

—* 1 1 —* 2

8 8 26 64 106

19 16 80 212 327

28 41 63 297 429

40
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17.

Intangible assets

Trademarks
US$'000

Cost:
At 8 December 2022 —
Additions 11,240
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 11,240
Accumulated amortisation:
At 8 December 2022 —
Amortisation charge 1,124
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 1,124
Amortisation charge 1,124
At 31 December 2024 2,248
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023 10,116
At 31 December 2024 8,992

Trademarks

The remaining useful life of the Trademarks is estimated at 9 years and 8 years as at 31
December 2023 and 2024, respectively.

The Group acquired the Trademarks, “IF” and “INNOCOCO” from the holding company for a
consideration of US$11.24 million with effect from 1 January 2023. The consideration was
determined based on the Relief from Royalty method, estimated by an independent valuer.

The consideration is payable in 3 payment tranches as follows:

Date Amount (inclusive of VAT)
Payable on or before 31 December 2023 US$3.75 million
Payable on or before 31 December 2024 US$3.75 million
Payable on or before 31 December 2025 US$3.75 million

The first tranche was paid in 2023.The second and third tranches were paid in April 2024
and August 2024, respectively. As at 31 December 2024, amounts due to holding company
relating to the acquisition of trademarks have been fully paid.
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18. Inventories

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Statement of financial position
Goods-in-transit (at cost or net realisable value) 447 1,044

Statement of profit or loss

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales 57,103 99,789

19. Trade receivables

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Group
Trade receivables:
- Third parties 2,985 7,107
- Holding company 4 -
Total trade receivables 2,989 7,107
Impairment loss on trade receivables - (62)
Net of trade receivables 2,989 7,045
31 December
2024
US$'000
Company
Trade receivables:
- Subsidiaries 63
Total trade receivables 63

Trade receivables due from third parties are non-interest bearing and are generally on 45
days’ terms. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair
values on initial recognition.

Trade receivables due from holding company and subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

For trade receivables, management monitors and assesses at each reporting date on any
indicator of significant increase in credit risk on trade receivables.
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19.

Trade receivables (cont’d)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of each of the Track Record
Periods, based on the dates of delivery of goods and net of loss allowance, are as follows:

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Group

Trade receivables:

Within 1 month 1,982 6,651
1 to 2 months 391 394
2 to 3 months — -
Over 3 months 616 -
Net of trade receivables 2,989 7,045

Management has assessed that the expected credit loss rate for trade receivables is minimal
as at 31 December 2023. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a small number of concentrated customers with no recent history of
default and the balances are considered fully recoverable considering the historical records
and forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses

The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables computed based
on lifetime ECL are as follows:

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Movement in allowance accounts:
At 8 December 2022/1 January - -
Charge for the year - 62

At 31 December - 62
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20. Other receivables
31 December
2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
Group
Current:
Other receivables 116 303
Refundable deposits 14 5
Advances to third parties 8 1
Amounts due from holding company 408 138
Total other receivables (current) 546 447

Non-current:

Refundable deposits - 15
Pledged deposits - 15
Total other receivables (non-current) - 30
Add: Cash and cash equivalents 15,599 54,818
Add: Trade receivables (net) 2,989 7,045
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 19,134 62,340

31 December

2024
US$'000
Company
Current:
Other receivables 22
Amount due from subsidiaries 25
Total other receivables (current) 47

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and expected to be settled in cash.
Refundable deposits relate to deposits paid for office rental.
Pledged deposits relates to pledged cash for credit card facilities.

Amounts due from holding company and subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The amount is expected to be settled in cash.
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21.

22.

Cash and cash equivalents
31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000

Group
Cash at banks and on hand 15,599 54,818
31 December
2024
US$'000
Company

Cash at banks and on hand 17,207

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

There are no Short-term deposits for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023.
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of 7 — 31 days for the year ended 31
December 2024 depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn
interests at the respective short-term deposit rates. Interests are earned at rates of 3.5% —
5.4% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Cash and cash equivalents not denominated in the functional currencies of the Group’s
entities are as follows:

31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000

Singapore Dollar 2,039 816

Trade payables

31 December

2023 2024
Group US$'000 US$'000
Trade payables
- Third parties 6,792 15,134
- Holding company 827 538
7,619 15,672
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22. Trade payables

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each of the Relevant Periods,
based on the invoice due date are as follows:

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Within 1 month 7,509 10,829
1 to 2 months 109 4,840
2 to 3 months - -
Over 3 months 1 3

7,619 15,672

Trade payables due to third party are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to
60 days’ terms.

Trade payables due to holding company are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on
demand and are settled in cash.

Trade payables not denominated in the functional currencies of the Group’s entities are as

follows:
31 December
2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
Thai Baht 6,549 14,396
Singapore Dollar 14 30
Chinese Yuan 24 1
Hong Kong Dollar 4 55
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23. Other payables

31 December

2023 2024

Group US$'000 US$'000
Current:
- Accruals 755 1,557
- Amounts due to holding company 4,005 167
- Provision for unutilised leave 4 -
- Provision for rebates 1,052 945
- Others 52 132
- Value-added tax payable, net 31 1

5,899 2,802
Non-current:
- Amounts due to holding company 3,747 -

3,747 -

9,646 2,802
Add: Trade payables 7,619 15,672
Less: Value-added tax payable, net (31) Q)
Less: Provision for unutilised leave 4) -
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 17,230 18,473

31 December

2024

Company US$'000
Current:
- Accruals 290
- Amounts due to holding company 19
- Amounts due to subsidiaries 1
- Others 25
- Value-added tax payable, net 3

338

Accruals are made mainly for professional fees.

The amounts due to holding company and subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
to be settled in cash and arising mainly from management fees. In 2023, the current and non-
current amounts due to holding company mainly arose from acquisition of trademarks from
the holding company in Note 17. These amounts were fully paid in 2024.

Provision for rebates primarily relate to the Group’s obligation to provide incentives or rebates
to customers that have met pre-agreed requirements.
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23.

24,

Other payables (cont’d)

Other payables not denominated in the functional currencies of the Group’s entities are as
follows:

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Thai Baht 233 111
Singapore Dollar 219 425
Chinese Yuan - 16
Hong Kong Dollar 71 -

Right-of-use and lease liabilities

The Group has lease contracts for offices and motor vehicles used in its operations. The
Group’s obligation under its leases is secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. Lease
contracts entered by the Group contains fixed payments only.

The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for certain leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements
during the Relevant Periods:

Office lease Motor vehicle Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
At 8 December 2022 - - -
Additions 134 - 134
Depreciation (14) - (14)
Translation differences Q) - (1)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 119 - 119
Additions 34 322 356
Depreciation (33) 47 (80)
Translation differences Q) Q) (2)
At 31 December 2024 119 274 393




Docusign Envelope ID: 20BE66D7-8D7B-4983-8A44-A05586F0DD49

IFBH Limited and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December 2024

24,

Right-of-use and lease liabilities (cont’d)

Set out below are carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and movements during the

Relevant Periods:

At 8 December 2022
Additions

Accretion of interest
Payments

Translation differences

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
Additions

Accretion of interest

Payments

Translation differences

At December 2024

Current
Non-current

Total current and non-current lease liabilities

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation of right-of-use asset
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to short-term and low value leases

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Lease
liabilities
US$'000

134
7

(17)
*

124
250
15

(71)
1

319

31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000

19 84
105 235
124 319
Period from
8 December Year ended
2022 to 31 31
December December
2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)

14 80

7 15
16 10
37 105

The Group has total cash outflows for lease of approximately US$33,000 and US$187,000
for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and year ended 31 December

2024 respectively.

* Amount less than US$1,000
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25. Deferred tax

Deferred tax as at 31 December relates to the following:

Consolidated

statement of Other Consolidated
financial Currency comprehensive statement of
position realignment income profit or loss
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
31 December 2023
Deferred tax
liabilities
Differences in
depreciation for tax
purposes 171 1 - 172
Deferred tax expense 172
31 December 2024
Deferred tax
liabilities
Differences in
depreciation for tax
purposes 254 3) - 86
Movements for Defined
Benefit Obligations (8) - (8) -
246
Deferred tax expense 86

26. Defined benefit obligations
The subsidiary of the Group incorporated and operating in Thailand operates a defined
benefit plan based on the requirements of Thai Labour Protection Act B.E 2541 (1998) to
provide retirement benefits to employees. Details of defined benefit obligations in respect of
the Group are as follows:
Movement of net liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position

31 December

2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000

Beginning balance - 97
Additions during the year through profit or loss 95 24
Remeasurements through other comprehensive income - 47
Foreign currency translation 2 2
Ending balance 97 170
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26.

Defined benefit obligations (cont’d)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss:

Period from

8 December
2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Current service cost 95 21
Interest on obligation - 3
Ending balance 95 24

Key actuarial financial assumptions

The latest annual actuarial valuation as at 7 January 2025 were performed by Tommy Pichet
Jiaramaneetaweesin, fellow of the Society of Actuaries of Thailand of Actuarial Business
Solutions Co., Ltd., using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The present value of the scheme’s obligation was a final lump sum salary and payment of
US$170,000 (2023: US$97,000). The principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the
Group’s obligations for the scheme for each year, and used as the basis for measuring the
expenses in relation to the scheme, were as follows:

Principal actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the end of the Relevant Periods (Expressed as weighted
averages):

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Discount rate (%) 3.2 2.8
Salary increase (%) 5.0 5.0
Retirement age (years) 60.0 60.0
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26. Defined benefit obligations (cont’d)

A one percentage point change in the assumed discount rate would have the following
effects:

31 December
2023 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Effects on the present value of
defined benefit obligations (13) 15 (22) 27

A one percentage point change in the assumed salary would have the following effects:

31 December
2023 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Effects on the present value of
defined benefit obligations 14 (12) 25 (21)

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefits obligations in
future years:

31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Within the next 12 months - -
Between 1 and 2 years - -
Between 2 and 5 years - -
Beyond 5 years 157 257
Total 157 257

27. Share capital

31 December

2023 2024
No. of No. of
Shares’000 US$000 Shares’000 US$'000

Group

Issued and fully paid:
As at 8 December 2022/1 January 1,000 737 1,000 737
Adjustments pursuant to the

Restructuring Exercise - - - 596
Issuance of ordinary shares - - 125 16,800
31 December 1,000 737 1,125 18,133
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27.

28.

Share capital (cont’'d)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

31 December

2024
No. of

Shares’000 US$'000
Company
Issued and fully paid:
As at incorporation date —* —*
Issuance of ordinary shares as part of the Share Swap 1,000 1,333
Issuance of ordinary shares 125 16,800
31 December 1,125 18,133

The Company was incorporated on 27 February 2024, with a share capital of 1 share of S$1
(US$1).

On 26 March 2024, the Company issued an additional 999,999 ordinary shares as part of
the Restructuring Exercise (Note 2.1).

On 1 April 2024, an investor subscribed for 125,000 ordinary shares of the Company for a
consideration of US$17.5 million in cash. The related transaction cost was US$0.7 million.

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as
and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

Other reserves
31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$000

Translation reserve (1) 5
Merger reserve - (596)
Defined benefit obligation reserve - (39)

1) (630)

Translation reserve: The translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of the subsidiary corporations whose
functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency.

Merger reserve: The merger reserve represents acquisition involving entities under common
control. The reserve arises from the difference between the purchase considerations and the
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under common control.

Defined benefit obligation reserve: The Group has defined benefit obligations to employees
in Thailand and the defined benefit obligation reserve comprises of actuarial gains and losses
arising from post-employment benefits that are recognised immediately in shareholder’s
equity.
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29.

30.

Capital commitment

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the end of the Relevant Periods but not recognised
in the financial statements are as follows:

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Capital commitments in respect of purchase of intangible asset
— accounting software 21 21
Purchase commitments in respect of finished goods 3,454 919

The purchase commitment relates to minimal contractual purchase requirements for a
supplier.

Related party transactions
€) Sale and purchase of goods and services

The following significant transactions between the Group and related parties took
place on terms agreed between the parties during the Relevant Periods:

Period from

8 December

2022to 31 Year ended
December 31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Income
Royalty income from holding company 107 250
Expenses
Purchase of inventories from holding company 12,378 18,073
Management and support services charged by holding
company 161 189
Royalty fee charged by holding company 6 1
Purchase of fixed assets from holding company 140 -
Acquisition of intangible assets from holding company 11,240 -

31 December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000

Receivables

Trade receivables from holding company (Note 19) 4 -
Other receivables from holding company (Note 20) 408 138
Payables

Trade payables to holding company (Note 22) 827 538
Other payables to holding company (Note 23) 7,752 167
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30.

31.

Related party transactions (cont’d)

(b)

Compensation expenses of key management personnel

Period from
8 December Year ended
2022to 31 31
December December
2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
(Note 2.2)
Wages, salaries, bonus and other short-term
employee benefits 3908 820
Total compensation expenses of key management
personnel 398 820
Comprise amounts for:
Directors of the Company 100 285
Other key management personnel 298 535
398 820

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments are included in
note 11 to the financial statements.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of
these risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of
these risks.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. For other financial
assets (including cash and cash equivalents), the Group minimises credit risk by
dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. All credit terms and credit limits
are subject to approval in accordance with the Group’s policy. Measures such as
collateral arrangements and factoring of trade receivables are used to mitigate credit
risk.

- B -
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(@)

Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period.

The credit-worthiness of customers, receivables that are past due and aggregate
risks to individual customers are regularly reviewed and monitored by the credit
department and key management team (which comprises the CFO, the respective
operation and function heads).

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 90 days when they fall due,
which are derived base on the Group’s historical information.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. The Group considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtors

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors
including changes in the payment status of debtors.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if
a debtor is more than 60 days past due in making contractual payment.

The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the issuer or debtor

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial
re-organisation

- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulty

The Group categorises a receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments more than 180 days past due. Financial assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the group. Where receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables using
a provision matrix. The provision rates are determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates analysed in accordance to days past due.
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31.

(@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont’d)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following

categories:

Category

Definition of category

Basis for
recognising
expected credit
loss (ECL)

Counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past-due amounts.

12-month ECL

Amount is >30 days past due or there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired (in default).

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the debtor has no
realistic prospect of recovery.

Amount is written-
off

The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets, as well as
maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating categories:

2024
Trade

receivables

Other

receivables

Net

Loss carrying

amount allowance amount

US$000 US$000 US$000

Gross
12-month or  carrying
Note Category lifetime ECL
19 Il Lifetime ECL 7,107
(simplified)
20 I 12-month ECL 477

Credit-impaired receivables

(62) 7,045

- 477

(62)

The Group has identified a group of receivables that are credit-impaired.

31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 US$'000
Gross carrying amount - 62
Allowance for expected credit losses - (62)
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31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(@)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Exposure to credit risk

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for
each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial
instruments presented on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group categorises a receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments more than 180 days past due. Financial assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group. Where receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables using
a provision matrix. The provision rates are determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates analysed in accordance to days past due. The loss
allowance provision as at 31 December 2023 and 2024 was determined by
incorporating forward-looking information such as industry-wide default rate
forecasted by external credit rating company.

For trade receivables, the management monitors and assesses at each reporting
date on any indicator of significant increase in credit risk on the trade receivables.
As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables have been measured based on lifetime
expected credit loss model and are subject to immaterial credit loss.

The lifetime expected credit losses for the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2024 are as follows:

Group Trade receivables
Days past due
Not past <30 31-60 61-90 >90days Total
due days days days
US$'000 US$000 USH000 US$H000 US$000 US$000
31
December
2023
Trade
receivables 1,143 839 391 - 616 2,989
31
December
2024
Expected
loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
Trade
receivables 1,389 5,262 394 - 62 7,107
Loss
allowance - - - - (62) (62)
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31.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(@)

Credit risk (cont’d)

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting
a particular industry (refer “Credit risk concentration profile” below).

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the geographical
location of its customers on an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of
the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

31 December

2023 2024
US$'000 % oftotal USHO000 % of total
By geographical location:
Mainland China 457 15% 5,072 72%
Hong Kong SAR 2,487 83% 1,803 26%
Thailand 44 1% - -
Other locations 1 # 170 2%
2,989 100% 7,045 100%

# less than 1%

- In FY2023, 98% of the Group’s trade receivables were due from 2 major
customers who are mainly multinational corporations in Hong Kong SAR and
Mainland China.

- In FY2024, 98% of the Group’s trade receivables were due from 4 major
customers who are mainly multinational corporations in Hong Kong SAR and
Mainland China.

- In FY2023, less than 1% of the Group’s trade and other receivables were due
from related parties.

- In FY2024, none of the Group’s trade and other receivables were due from
related parties.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies
of Group entities. The foreign currencies in which these transactions are mainly
denominated are Thai Baht (THB) and Singapore Dollar (SGD).

Foreign currency exposures at the end of the Relevant Periods are as follows:

Group
Assets Liabilities
31 December
2023 2024 2023 2024

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Thai Baht — — 6,782 14,507
Singapore

Dollar 2,039 816 233 455

The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure risk by matching, as far as
possible, receipts and payments in each individual currency. Foreign currency is
converted into the functional currency as and when management deems necessary.
The unhedged exposure is reviewed and monitored closely on an ongoing basis and
management will consider hedging any exposure where appropriate.

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax to a
reasonably possible change in THB and SGD exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant.

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
Increase/ profit before (decrease)in
(decrease) tax equity
% US$'000 US$'000

31 December 2023
If THB weakens against USD 5 339 281
If THB strengthens against USD (5) (339) (281)
If SGD weakens against USD 5 (90) (75)
If SGD strengthens against USD (5) 90 75
31 December 2024
If THB weakens against USD 5 725 602
If THB strengthens against USD (5) (725) (602)
If SGD weakens against USD 5 18 15
If SGD strengthens against USD (5) (18) (15)
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s liquidity risk management policy is to manage liquidity risk on a group
basis, to maintain sufficient liquid financial assets. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through funds generated from operations.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities at the end of the Relevant Periods based on
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

1year 1to 5
or less years Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
31 December 2023
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 3,535 - 3,535
Cash and cash equivalents 15,599 - 15,599
Total undiscounted financial assets 19,134 - 19,134
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 12,627 3,844 16,471
Accrued operating expenses 755 - 755
Lease liabilities 29 124 153
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 13,411 3,968 17,379
Total net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities) 5,723 (3,968) 1,755
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
() Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (cont'd)

1 year 1to 5
or less years Total
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
31 December 2024
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 7,492 30 7,522
Cash and cash equivalents 54,846 - 54,846
Total undiscounted financial assets 62,338 30 62,368
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 16,916 - 16,916
Accrued operating expenses 1,557 - 1,557
Lease liabilities 100 259 359
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 18,573 259 18,832
Total net undiscounted financial
assets/ (liabilities) 43,765 (229) 43,536

(d) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value. The capital structure of the Group
consists of equity attributable to owners of the parent, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of
changes in economic conditions. To manage the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
repurchase shares or issue new shares. For the Relevant Periods, the Group has
declared dividends as disclosed in Note 14.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the Relevant
Periods.

As the Group is at net cash position at the end of the Relevant Periods, disclosure
of gearing ratio is not meaningful.
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32.

33.

Fair value of assets and liabilities
Fair value hierarchy

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that is
dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

e Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date,

e Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

e Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value measurements that use inputs of different hierarchy levels are categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts
are reasonable approximation of fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, current
trade and other receivables, current trade and other payables, accrued operating expenses,
current lease liabilities related to right-of-use assets based on their notional amounts,
reasonably approximate their fair values because these are mostly short term in nature.

Management has estimated the fair value of non-current lease liabilities related to right-of-
use assets, other receivables and other payables by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at an appropriate rate.

Comparative figures

Group

Although the Restructuring Exercise was completed on 26 March 2024 and the Company
was incorporated on 27 February 2024, the consolidated financial statements of the IFBH
Group are prepared as if the Company, i.e. the parent of the Group had been in existence
since the incorporation of IFB Singapore as the Group is under the common control of the
Controlling Shareholder. The financial period ended 31 December 2023 relates to the
financial period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023.

Company

This being the first set of audited financial statements, there are no comparative figures.
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34.

35.

36.

Events occurring after the reporting period

On 4 February 2025, a final exempt one-tier dividend in respect of year ended 31 December
2024 of US$24.89 per share amounting to US$28,000,000 was proposed by the Board. The
dividend proposed is not accounted for until it has been approved by the shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting.

On 21 March 2025, the ultimate Controlling Shareholder transferred 5,100 ordinary shares
of IFB Thailand held by him, representing approximately 51% of the total share capital of IFB
Thailand, to the holding company at a consideration of THB 510,000, which was determined
based on the par value of IFB Thailand’s shares.

On the same date, the ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the holding company and the
Company entered into an adherence agreement to the IFB Thailand Shareholder's
Agreement (Note 1.1), by virtue of which, the holding company shall be bounded by the
Shareholder's Agreement as if it became a party to the Shareholder's Agreement since the
date of the adherence agreement.

The consideration of the share transfer was duly settled and completed on 21 March
2025. Upon completion, the holding company became a shareholder of IFB Thailand,
holding 5,100 ordinary shares of IFB Thailand, and the ultimate Controlling Shareholder
ceased to be a shareholder of IFB Thailand. By virtue of the rights attaching to the preference
share under the Shareholder's Agreement, under Thai law, the Company continues to have
99.89% of the beneficial interest in IFB Thailand based on the articles of association of IFB
Thailand.

On 4 June 2025, a tax exempt one-tier dividend of US$1.78 per share amounting to US$2
million out of the retained earnings of the Company as at 31 December 2024 was proposed
by the Board. On the same date, an interim tax exempt one-tier dividend in respect of the
year ending 31 December 2025 of US$10.67 per share amounting to US$12 million was also
proposed by the Board. The dividends proposed are not accounted for until it has been
approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

Subsequent financial statements

No audited financial statements have been prepared by the Company, the Group or any of
the companies now comprising the Group in respect of any period subsequent to 31
December 2024.

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the period from 8 December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and

year ended 31 December 2024 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the directors on 18 June 2025.
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